

BYLAWS OF EAST VALLEY AVIATORS, INC.

December 5, 2006

These Amended Bylaws were approved by the membership at the general meeting on December 11, 2000, and became effective immediately thereafter. Subsequent amendments were adopted on December 6, 2001, December 4, 2002, December 3, 2003, May 5, 2004, December 1, 2004, and finally on December 5, 2006. They shall supersede in their entirety the initial Bylaws and all prior amendments.

ARTICLE I

The purpose of the EVA Club is to provide a safe friendly place to fly radio controlled aircraft and to foster closer working relationships with the community in an endeavor to promote the hobby.

MEMBERSHIP

Sec. 1 ELIGIBILITY. Any person concurring with the Articles Incorporation of East Valley Aviators, Inc. hereafter called EVA, and actively engaged in the practice of building and flying model aircraft of every type, sailing, and operating models of full sized subjects shall be eligible for membership in EVA, subject to the provisions of these Bylaws.

Sec. 2 SPONSORSHIP. Prospective applicants must be sponsored by an EVA member in good standing.

Sec. 3 AFFILIATION. EVA, by vote of its Board of Directors, is affiliated with and chartered by the national association known as the Academy Of Model Aeronautics (AMA). When otherwise qualified under the provisions of the Bylaws, a member of EVA must also be a member of the AMA or MACC (Canadian) and possess a current membership card evidencing such membership therein. Applicants for EVA membership must either be a member of the AMA/MACC or submit an application for AMA membership along with the appropriate fees.

Sec. 4 APPLICATION FOR MEMBERSHIP.

- A. **MEMBERSHIP CLASSIFICATIONS.** The EVA has four classes of membership. EVA does not have an Associate Membership classification.

ADULT or REGULAR (over 18 years)

JUNIOR (through 17 years)

FAMILY (spouse and minor children through 17 years)

Honorary (Non flying former members who have made significant contributions to the Club and other community individuals that have been particularly supportive of the Club.

B. APPLICATIONS. Application for membership shall be made to the Membership Chairman. Application shall be accompanied by the initiation fee, payment of the annual dues for such membership, and proof of membership in the AMA/MCCA, or application and fee for membership in the AMA.

C. The applicant may be granted membership in EVA upon approval by the Board of Directors at their next regular Board meeting. The Board of Directors may delegate membership approval authority to the Membership Chairman, but applicants who are not approved for membership must be rejected by the Board. Upon approval, the Applicant shall be notified in writing and will be furnished a membership package.

D. Should the Board of Directors reject an applicant for membership, all monies paid by the applicant shall be returned immediately.

Sec. 5 MEMBERSHIP PACKAGE. Upon approval of the applicant's membership in the EVA, a new member shall receive:

- A. Copy of Flying Site Rules.
- B. Road map to the flying site.
- C. Key or combination for the flying site lock.
- D Membership Card/Badge.

Sec. 6 DURATION OF MEMBERSHIP. Membership in EVA may terminate by death, voluntary withdrawal, or otherwise pursuant to these Bylaws. The right of the member to vote, and all other privileges and interests of a member in or to EVA, or the property thereof, shall cease upon termination of membership, and such notice shall be presented to the Board of Directors at their next succeeding meeting thereof. Memberships are not transferable for any reason.

Sec. 7 SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION. For cause, any membership may be suspended or terminated. Sufficient cause for such suspension or termination of membership shall be the violation of the provisions of these By-Laws or any rule or agreement adopted by EVA, or any other conduct prejudicial to the interests of EVA. Such suspension or expulsion must be by a unanimous vote of the entire membership of the Board of Directors, provided that a statement of the charges

shall have been mailed by certified mail to the last recorded address of the member at least fifteen (15) days before final action is taken thereon. Such statement of charges shall be accompanied by a notice of the time and place of the meeting of the Board of Directors, at which the charges are to be considered, and the member shall have the opportunity to appear and present any defense before action is taken thereon.

ARTICLE II DUES AND FEES

Sec. 1 CALENDAR YEAR. The business of the EVA shall be operated on a calendar year basis and all dues and fees provided for shall be due and payable accordingly.

Sec. 2 INITIATION FEE. An initiation fee shall be collected in accordance with the following schedule:

- A. Adult (18 years and over).....\$25.00
- B. Family\$25.00
- C. Junior (Through 17 years of age).....\$25.00

Sec. 3 DUES. The annual dues for each membership shall be collected in accordance with the following schedule:

- A. Adult.....\$40.00
- B. Family\$50.00
- C. Junior\$20.00
- D. Honorary Members shall not be required to pay dues, but must hold current AMA/MCCA membership to use the EVA flying site.
- E. Yearly dues received from first time applicants after October 1st of the current calendar year shall carry over to include membership for the following calendar year as well.

Sec. 4 DELINQUENCIES.

- A. Dues for each membership shall be payable annually on January 1st each year.
- B. Any member who is delinquent in payment of dues after January 1 is subject to having his/her membership terminated immediately after the official February meeting.

- C. Any member who is delinquent in payment of dues after January 1 is not eligible to use the Club flying field until such time as his/her dues are current.
- D. Unless said member notifies an EVA officer in writing, prior to the last day for payment of his/her annual dues, that they have a cause to enter an inactive status, a penalty fee of \$10.00 shall be added to the total dues delinquent and owing.

Sec. 5 INACTIVE STATUS. A member who has cause to do so, may enter an inactive status for a period of up to one (1) year by notifying any EVA officer in writing prior to the last day for payment of their annual dues. During this period said member shall pay no dues and shall be entitled to no EVA privileges. Said member shall however receive any newsletter published by the EVA. Reinstatement to full membership privileges, without penalty or initiation fees, shall occur on resumption of dues prior to the termination of the one year period of inactive status.

Sec. 6 ASSESSMENTS. If at any time the Board of Directors shall determine that an assessment of the membership shall be deemed advisable, such assessment shall be levied by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the members present at a meeting of EVA, provided however, that notice of proposed assessment has been provided to all members prior to the meeting.

Sec. 7 DISTRIBUTION OF ASSETS. Upon final dissolution of the EVA and surrender of the organization and name, and after all debts of the EVA are fully paid and final audit completed, all funds remaining in the EVA treasury shall be donated to the recognized charitable organization or non-profit organization as defined in the original Articles of Incorporation of the EVA recorded with the Arizona Corporation Commission. All dues collected and other income must be used for the purpose of the EVA and shall not inure to the benefit of any individual member of EVA.

ARTICLE III MEETINGS

Sec. 1 ANNUAL MEETING. The annual meeting of the EVA shall be held on the first Wednesday of December, at a time and place as the Board of Directors may designate. Notice of the time and place shall be published in a newsletter or other written notice.

Sec. 2 REGULAR MEETINGS. In addition to the annual meeting in December, regular meetings of the membership of the EVA shall be held the first Wednesday of the months of January, February, March, May, and October at a time and place to be designated by the Board of Directors. Special meetings of the EVA membership shall be at any convenient time and place, upon call by the

President, or upon the written call of three (3) members of the Board of Directors. Requests for a special meeting of the membership submitted to the President by at least ten (10) percent of the total voting membership will be approved. Notice of time and place of a special meeting shall be provided to all members at least two (2) weeks prior to the special meeting.

Sec. 3 QUORUM. At least ten (10) percent of the total voting membership shall constitute a quorum for transaction of business at any general meeting of the EVA, providing that for any motion to carry, two-thirds (2/3) of the eligible membership present shall vote affirmative

Sec. 4 VOTING. Whenever in the judgment of the President a mail or telephone vote of the Board of Directors shall be necessary or expedient, he/she may direct that such vote be taken. Upon authorization of a majority of the members of the Board of Directors voting, the President may direct a mail vote of the membership of EVA, in which case a majority of the votes returned shall determine the question submitted, provided that there is a return from at least fifty percent (50%) of the total membership upon such vote.

ARTICLE IV BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Sec. 1 GOVERNMENT. The management of the affairs and business of EVA shall be vested in the Board of Directors heretofore provided. The members of the Board shall, upon election, serve without compensation. Board members shall enter upon their duties in January, and shall continue in office until their successors have been elected and duly installed.

Sec. 2 COMPOSITION. The Board of Directors will consist of the six (6) duly elected officers of the EVA.

Sec. 3 ELECTION OF OFFICERS.

A. Club officers normally serving two year terms of office will be elected in alternate years according to following schedule. The President, Treasurer and one Officer At Large (Safety Officer) will be elected one year and the Vice-President, Secretary and the second Officer At Large (Safety Officer) will be elected in alternate years.

B. Implementation of this provision will require onetime adjustments in the terms of the officers affected by this amendment.

1. The President and Treasurer will be elected and take office effective January 1, 2004. One Member At Large (Safety Officer) to be designated by the current Board of

Directors will continue to serve and his term of office will be extended by one year to coincide with the new two year term of office for the newly elected President and Treasurer.

2. The terms of the current Vice President and Secretary will be extended for one year to terminate on December 31, 2004. The remaining Member At Large (Safety Officer) will serve out his current term which also ends December 31, 2004.
3. Each group of these officers will henceforth stand for election in alternating years.

Sec. 4 DUTIES. The Board of Directors shall have control and management of the affairs of EVA, with authority to make any expenditures it may deem necessary for the welfare and best interests of EVA, to suspend or expel members, create committees, and shall have power in everything necessary and desirable in conducting the business of the EVA, if in accordance with these Bylaws and the laws of the State of Arizona.

Sec. 5 MEETINGS. A regular meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held periodically at a time and place designated by the President. The President, or the Secretary, at the written request of at least three (3) members of the board, may issue a call for a special meeting of the Board. A minimum of five days notice will be required for such meetings. Members of the Board of Directors may hold meetings without notice where such notice is waived in writing.

Sec. 6 QUORUM. Three (3) members of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum. Absent members of the Board may vote by proxy, but an absent member does not apply to satisfying the requirement for a quorum.

Sec. 7 ABSENCE. If any member of the board of Directors shall be absent from three (3) consecutive meetings of the Board, unless excused by the President or by the Board, a vacancy may be declared to exist.

Sec. 8 EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS. The President, upon relinquishing his office, shall become an ex officio member of the Board of Directors for a period of one (1) year. He/she will serve in an advisory role and will not be a voting member of the Board.

ARTICLE V OFFICERS

Sec. 1 OFFICERS. The Officers of EVA shall be as follows:

- A. President
- B. Vice President
- C. Secretary
- D. Treasurer
- E. Member at Large/Safety Coordinator
- F. Member at Large/Safety Officer

Sec. 2 COMPENSATION. Officers shall serve without compensation.

Sec. 3 DUTIES. The duties of each officer is as follows:

- A. **President.** The President shall be the Executive Officer of EVA and shall preside at meetings of EVA and of the Board of Directors. He/she shall be a member ex officio of all committees except the nominating committee.
 - (1) The President is empowered as Executive Officer of the EVA may delegate any or all of his powers to other officers from time to time as and may be in his/her judgment to be in the best interest of EVA.
 - (2) The President shall appoint all committees not otherwise provided for, and shall have general supervision over all officers of EVA.
 - (3) The President may require, from time to time, special reports from officers and committees to be made to him/her, to the Board of Directors, or to the membership of EVA.
- B. **Vice President.** The Vice President shall act for the President in the President's absence and shall be the successor to the President should he/she become incapacitated or otherwise unable or unwilling to continue to serve in the office. The Vice President shall also preside at meetings of the Board of Directors and EVA general membership meetings in the absence of the President. The Vice President is also designated as the Chairman of the Membership Committee.
- C. **Secretary.** The Secretary shall record and maintain records of all club business in the form of minutes and present such to the Board or membership at each meeting. The Secretary shall be

responsible for club communications with the AMA as well as all official outside communication relating to club business and activities. The Secretary shall keep the President and Vice President informed of all communications received whether or not executive action is required.

D. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have charge of all EVA funds keeping the club funds in a bank checking and/or savings account in a depository the Board of Directors may from time to time designate. The Treasurer shall be responsible for keeping an accurate, detailed record of accounts in books belonging to EVA. The records shall be open at all times to inspection by the President, Vice President, or the Board of Directors. He/she shall report the financial condition of EVA whenever requested by the President or Board of Directors and shall make a full report to EVA at its annual meeting and regular meetings of the membership and Board of Directors. He/she shall also act as the statutory agent for EVA providing the annual reports required by the Arizona Corporation Commission and completed tax returns and forms required by the Federal and State Internal Revenue agencies.

He/she shall collect all dues and assessments as well as other monies EVA may be entitled to giving his receipt thereof.

He/She may be designated the EVA Membership Chairman.

C. Members at Large (2). The two Members at Large shall serve as Club Safety Coordinator and Club Officer responsible for maintaining a safe flying atmosphere at our flying field. They will report at each meeting how the membership is adhering to the adopted safety rules and regulations. The Safety Officers have the responsibility and the right to request any individual using any of the Club's facilities to cease such use due to violations of either the AMA Safety Code or the one adopted by the club.

ARTICLE VI NOMINATIONS

Sec. 1 NOMINATING COMMITTEE.

A. Members of Committee. The Nominating Committee shall consist of three (3) members to be selected in the following manner: At the October meeting of the Board of Directors the President shall select a member of the Board of Directors and/or membership of the EVA to serve as a member of said committee and who shall serve as the Chairman of said Nominating

Committee. The members of the Board of Directors shall select from their number, or from the membership of EVA, the second member of said committee, thereupon, said two members of the committee shall select from the Board of Directors, or the membership of EVA, the third member of said committee.

B. Duties. It shall be the duty of this committee to nominate candidates for Directors to be elected at the next annual meeting. They shall report to the membership at least thirty (30) days before the annual meeting the names of such candidates, and these names shall be published in a newsletter, or other appropriate written form of notice to the membership as may be necessary. No nomination shall be made without the prior consent of the nominee having been obtained and verified that he/she is a member in good standing.

Sec. 2 INDEPENDENT NOMINATIONS. Such nominations shall also be made from the floor at the annual meeting, provided prior consent of the nominee has been obtained and it has been verified that he/she is a member in good standing.

Sec. 3 NOMINATION FOR ELECTION. Any person in nomination will first be qualified by the Secretary before his/her name will be placed on the ballot.

ARTICLE VII DISSOLUTION

Sec. 1 DISSOLUTION. EVA may be dissolved upon a vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the membership at a meeting called especially for that purpose.

Sec. 2 NOTICE. A notice of said meeting, stating the time and place thereof, shall be mailed to each member of EVA at his latest known address at least thirty (30) days prior to the date on which said meeting is to be held.

ARTICLE VIII NEWSLETTER

Sec. 1 It is proposed that a newsletter be published and mailed to the membership of EVA, active and inactive, not less than quarterly. When published, in addition to providing news and commentary of general interest, the newsletter shall also be used to notify members of meeting information, provide special assessment vote notices, and such other information for which special notice may be required.

Sec. 2 Prior to submitting any such newsletter for publication, the newsletter editor shall submit the same to the President for approval.

ARTICLE IX EMBLEM

(When accepted by the general membership)

Sec. 1 EVA shall have as its emblem the emblem which has heretofore been employed as the emblem of the East Valley Aviators, Inc. This emblem shall not be changed unless so voted by two-thirds (2/3) of the eligible membership at a meeting for which such proposed action has been given and action taken as provided for by the provisions of Article XII of these by-laws.

ARTICLE X FLYING SITE

Sec. 1 USAGE. Use of the EVA flying site shall be limited to:

- A. Flying of model aircraft.
- B. Certain other modeling activities as determined by the Board of Directors.
- C. Non flying usage of the EVA flying site, as authorized by the Board of Directors, shall be solely at the members, or visitors or guests, own responsibility, provided that said person or persons sign a "Waiver of Responsibility" statement absolving and releasing East Valley Aviators of all legal and financial responsibility concerning such usage.
- D. EVA members in good standing.
- E. EVA members possessing a current AMA/MACC membership.
- F. Limited visiting flyers, by invitation of EVA members, provided said visiting flyer possesses a current, valid AMA or MACC membership. The inviting EVA member shall assume all responsibility for visiting flyers site usage.

Sec. 2 FLYING SITE RULES. A set of flying site rules, to promote safety, courtesy and general good conduct shall be established and posted at the flying site.

Sec. 3 FLYING SITE SAFETY OFFICERS. Members of the Board of Directors, in addition to their regular duties, shall constitute flying safety officers.

- A. The duties of the Flying Safety Officers shall be to insure the safe flying of all model aircraft, as well as enforcement of flying safety rules.

Sec. 4 TRANSMITTER FREQUENCY CONTROL.

- B. All transmitters must have frequency identification streamers or pennants in accordance with AMA regulations.
- C. All transmitters must be surrendered and contained in the designated transmitter impound area (when provided for) during flying activities.
- D. A positive method of frequency control shall be established and maintained.

ARTICLE XI ORDER OF BUSINESS

Sec. 1 The order of business for regular, special and annual meetings shall be decided by the President.

ARTICLE XII AMENDMENT OF ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION AND/OR BYLAWS

Sec. 1 The Articles of Incorporation and/or By-laws shall be amended, rescinded or adopted as follows:

- A. Any proposed change shall be approved by the affirmative vote of a majority of the members present at a regular or special meeting of the membership.
- B. In addition, the Board of Directors may also propose and approve changes to the Articles of Incorporation or By-laws at a regular or special meeting.
 - 1. After approved, the changes shall be submitted for the final approval of the membership at large at a regular or special meeting of the membership as soon thereafter as practicable and provided that written notice of the proposed change, in the newsletter or otherwise, shall have been given to the membership prior to the meeting.
- C. Final approval of any change of the Articles of Incorporation and/or By-Laws shall require the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the voting membership in attendance.

REVISION HISTORY

Add purpose of the EVA Club Added December 5, 2006

ARTICLE I – MEMBERSHIP

Section 3. Revised December 11, 2000

Section 4. Revised December 11, 2000

Revised December 6, 2001

Revised December 4, 2002

Revised December 1, 2004

Revised December 5, 2006

Section 6. Revised May 5, 2004

Revised December 5, 2006

Section 8 Revised December 5, 2006

ARTICLE II – DUES AND FEES

Section 2. Revised December 11, 2000

Section 3. Revised December 11, 2000

Revised December 1, 2004

Section 4. Revised December 6, 2001

Revised December 4, 2002

Revised December 5, 2006

ARTICLE III – MEETINGS

Section 2. Revised December 11, 2000

Revised December 5, 2006

Section 3. Revised December 5, 2006

ARTICLE IV – BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 2. Revised December 11, 2000

Section 3. Revised December 3, 2003

ARTICLE V – OFFICERS

Sections 1, 2, 3. Revised December 11, 2000

Section 1. Revised December 5, 2006

Section 3. Revised December 5, 2006

ARTICLE X – FLYING SITE

Section 1. Revised December 11, 2000

AMENDED BYLAWS OF EAST VALLEY AVIATORS, INC.

December 4, 2002

These amendments, approved by the membership at the December 4, 2002 general meeting, (1) change the method for calculating the maximum membership so as to count only paid members including youth members. Family members would not be counted thus increasing the total paid memberships available. (2) Individual memberships would be terminated for non-payment of dues after the official February meeting. This would allow the enrollment of new members earlier than the previous February 28th termination date. They become

effective January 1, 2003 and supersede the sections as noted.

ARTICLE I MEMBERSHIP

Sec. 4 APPLICATION FOR MEMBERSHIP.

- E. The maximum number of memberships, adult and youth, shall not exceed 250. The member limit may be changed in the future by a vote of the membership in attendance at a regular or special meeting.

ARTICLE II DUES AND FEES

Sec. 4 DELINQUENCIES.

- F. Dues for each membership shall be payable annually on January 1st each year. Dues may be prorated for new partial year memberships.

- B. Any member who is delinquent in payment of dues after January 31 is subject to having his/her membership terminated immediately after the official February meeting.

- C. Unless said member notifies an EVA officer in writing, prior to the last day for payment of his/her annual dues, that they have a cause to enter into an inactive status, a penalty fee of \$10.00 will be added to the total dues delinquent and owing.

Paragraph D is renumbered Paragraph C

AMENDED BYLAWS OF EAST VALLEY AVIATORS, INC.

December 3, 2003

This amendment approved by the membership at the December 3, 2003, general meeting will change the election cycle for Club officers so that three officers, the President, Treasurer, and one Officer At Large (Safety Officer) will be elected one year and the Vice President, Secretary and the other Officer At Large (Safety Officer) will be elected in alternate years. Officers will continue to serve for a two

year term. Good management dictates that electing club officers in alternate years will provide continuity in management of EVA affairs rather than having key officers all replaced at the same time. This amendment also provides for how this transition will be implemented and will affect the election officers at the December 2003 general meeting.

ARTICLE IV BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Sec. 3 *ELECTION OF OFFICERS.*

G. Club officers normally serving two year terms of office will be elected in alternate years according to following schedule. The President, Treasurer and one Officer At Large (Safety Officer) will be elected one year and the Vice-President, Secretary and the second Officer At Large (Safety Officer) will be elected in alternate years.

H. Implementation of this provision will require onetime adjustments in the terms of the officers affected by this amendment.

1. The President and Treasurer will be elected and take office effective January 1, 2004. One Member At Large (Safety Officer) to be designated by the current Board of Directors will continue to serve and his term of office will be extended by one year to coincide with the new two year term of office for the newly elected President and Treasurer.
2. The terms of the current Vice President and Secretary will be extended for one year to terminate on December 31, 2004. The remaining Member At Large (Safety Officer) will serve out his current term which also ends December 31, 2004.
3. Each group of these officers will henceforth stand for election in alternating years.

Existing Sections 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 are number as Sections 4, 5, 6, 7, and 8 without any change.

**AMENDED BYLAWS
OF**

EAST VALLEY AVIATORS, INC.

May 5, 2004

At the May 5, 2004 General Membership Meeting the following proposal was approved by the members present.

The following sentence is to be added to Article 1, Section 6; Memberships are not transferable for any reason.

AMENDED BYLAWS OF EAST VALLEY AVIATORS, INC.

December 1, 2004

Several proposed changes to the Club's By-laws have been brought to the Board of Directors in the past year. At the December 1, 2004 General Membership Meeting the following amendments were approved by a majority of the members present.

1. It is proposed that we add the following paragraph to Article II, Section 3, Paragraph E to the by-laws;

E. Yearly dues received from first time applicants after October 1st of the current calendar year shall carry over to include membership for the following calendar year as well.

2. It is proposed that Article I, Section 4, paragraphs E and F be removed from the by-laws.

E. The maximum number of memberships, adult and youth, shall not exceed 250.

F. When the total club membership reaches the maximum number of 250, the Membership Chairman shall establish a waiting list of applicants desiring to join the Club. The list will be maintained in order of the date an application was received. No distinction will be made between applicants for reinstatement and new applicants. When a vacancy occurs, the next applicant on the list will be offered the opportunity to join the club.

AMENDED BYLAWS OF

EAST VALLEY AVIATORS, INC.
December 5, 2006

The Board recommends that these proposed amendments to the East Valley Aviator (EVA) Bylaws be approved by the membership at the December 2006 general meeting. They correct minor inconsistencies and clarify existing sections, but some important changes affect membership renewal required for use of the flying field and how special membership meetings can be requested. They will be incorporated into the Club Bylaws when approved. Approved at the December 5, 2006, meeting.

1. Add the following between the heading **ARTICLE I** and **MEMBERSHIP** that sets forth the Club's objective and purpose.

The purpose of the EVA Club is provide a safe friendly place to fly radio controlled aircraft and to foster closer working relationships with the community in an endeavor to promote the hobby.

2. Art I Sec 4 A. Membership Classifications. Change the first sentence to read "**The EVA has four classes**" and add the following category.

Honorary. (Non flying former members who have made significant contributions to the Club and other community individuals that have been particularly supportive of the Club. This will consolidate the Honorary membership classes into one section.

3. Art I Sec 6 A. Membership Package. *Delete item A. Copy of the Bylaws. Designate the remaining items A through D.* The Bylaws are normally available on the web site and are posted at the field. Members can request a copy from the Treasurer.

4. Art I Sec 8 Honorary Membership. *Delete this section as it has been incorporated into Section 4 A.*

5. Art II Section 4 Delinquencies. Item B. *Change January 31 to read January 1.* This will conform to the Club operating year.

6. Art II Section 4. *Add new Item C and change former Item C to D. Any member who is delinquent in payment of dues after January 1 is not eligible to use the Club flying field until such time as his/her dues are current.* The Club year and the AMA year are January 1 through December 31. The AMA does not have a grace period and unless renewed, AMA insurance coverage terminates December 31. EVA Club renewal requires AMA coverage and members who are delinquent on January 1 are presumed to be without AMA insurance. This will insure that all flyers have current AMA coverage.

7. Art III Section 2 Regular Meetings. Change the second sentence to read: *Special meetings of the EVA membership shall be at any convenient time and place, upon call of the President or upon the written call of three (3) members of the Board of Directors.* Add the following sentence: *Requests for a special meeting of the membership submitted to the President by at least ten percent of the total voting membership will be approved. Notice of time and place of a special meeting shall be*

provided to all members at least two (2) weeks prior to the special meeting. This clarifies how and when special meetings will be called by the President.

8. Art III Sec 3 QUORUM. Change this Section to read: ***At least ten (10) percent of the total voting membership shall constitute a quorum for transaction of business at any general meeting of the EVA, providing that for any motion to carry, two-thirds (2/3) of the eligible membership present shall vote affirmative.*** This insures that there will be an significant number of members participating in any matters of importance to the total membership.

9. Art V Sec 1 Officers. Revise Item E to read ***Member at Large/ Safety Coordinator.*** The AMA requires that each club have a designated Safety Coordinator.

10. Art V Sec 3 C Members at Large (2) ***Change the last paragraph 3 C to 3E.*** This corrects a clerical duplication error. Revise the first sentence to read ***“The two Members at Large shall serve as Club Safety Coordinator and Club Safety Officer responsible for*”** This clarifies that there is a Club Safety Coordinator.

END.